Bylaws

Bylaws of the Aurora Borealis Branch of the Commissioned Officers Association of the U.S. Public Health Service, Inc.

Article One - Name

This organization shall be known as the Aurora Borealis Branch of the Commissioned Officers Association of the United States Public Health Service. This organization is open to any active-duty, reserve, or retired officers who have served in Southcentral Alaska.

Article Two - Mission Statement

The mission of this Branch includes the furtherance of the mission of the Commissioned Officers Association of the U.S. Public Health Service by extending the national organization's activity in the state of Alaska.

In addition to cooperating in the furtherance of the mission of the Association, the Branch will carry out such functions as mentoring, counseling, facilitation of discussion and social activities on behalf of its members; fostering relations among retired, active, inactive reserve, and former officers of the PHS Commissioned Corps; protecting the rights and interests of personnel of the PHS; serving the community and nation.

Article Three - Membership

All members of the Branch must be members in good standing of an authorized membership category as defined in the National COA bylaws. All members of the Branch are eligible to vote and hold office.

Article Four - Dues and Assessments

<u>Section One</u>: The membership dues for the Branch shall be \$20.00 per year. Any change to these dues must be approved by a majority of the Branch members and communicated to the national COA so that it can be reflected in the annual dues billing.

<u>Section Two:</u> Branch dues will be billed directly from the national COA and are payable with national dues. Twice a year, the Branch treasurer will request from the national office the disbursement of all dues collected on behalf of the Branch.

<u>Section Three</u>: Any member transferred to the geographical area of this Branch who was in good standing with dues paid to the Branch from which he/she transferred will be entitled, for the balance of the fiscal year, to full membership in this Branch.

Article Five - Meetings

The meetings of the Branch shall be held monthly or as the Branch designates. For conducting the business of the Branch, a quorum of at least 20 (twenty) members shall be present or achieved by proxy or teleconference.

Article Six - Governing Body

<u>Section One</u>: The governing body of this Branch shall be known as the Executive Committee and shall consist of the President, President-Elect, Secretary, Treasurer and Immediate Past President.

<u>Section Two</u>: *Duties of Officers*. The duties of the officers shall consist of the following:

President – The president shall preside at meetings, serve as an ex-officio member of all standing committees, and perform such other functions as may be specified in these bylaws.

President-Elect - The president-elect shall act for the president in the absence of the president. He/she shall be mentored by the president and become prepared to take over as the president after serving as president-elect for one year. This should allow for continuity and enhance effectiveness in the Branch dynamics and leadership.

Secretary - The secretary shall maintain accurate minutes of the meetings and send reports to the national COA. The minutes shall be prepared and presented at least one week in advance of the next monthly Branch meeting. He/she shall carefully preserve, on file, all reports and papers of every description presented to the Branch and shall be charged with the necessary business and professional correspondence. He/she shall notify every Branch member at least one week in advance of the time and place of each meeting.

Treasurer – The treasurer shall take charge of the funds of the Branch. He/she shall present to the membership at each business meeting a statement of the account of the Branch, which will be certified by the Executive Committee.

Immediate Past President- The past president shall serve on the Executive Committee and will assist with Branch affairs when needed.

Article Seven - Election of Officers

At least 60 days before the end of the term (July) of the incumbent officers the Executive Committee shall appoint a Nominating Committee of at least three Branch members in good standing, not currently holding elective or appointive office to nominate candidates and prepare ballots for the elective offices. The Nominating Committee, chaired by the president-elect, shall review and make sure potential candidates for each office are in good standing nationally and locally and then nominate these potential candidates for such vacancies as they occur. An attempt shall be made to nominate at least two (2) candidates for each vacant office. The candidates must submit a position statement as to the reasons why they would like to run for office to the Nominating Committee.

The Nominating Committee shall prepare the ballot and electronically distribute it, along with the candidates' position statements, to all members of the Branch no later than September 15 for review prior to the September meeting.

The Nominating Committee will have paper ballots available at the September meeting for voting. Only members in good standing may cast votes. All members must submit their ballots by the end of the meeting. Members in good standing who are unable to attend the meeting may print out the prepared ballot, sign it, seal it, and submit it to a member of the Nominating Committee prior to the meeting. The Nominating Committee will tally the paper ballots privately and confidentially at the end of the meeting.

Results of the election shall be announced electronically on the day after the meeting and at the following October meeting. All outgoing and incoming Executive Committee members shall be present for the October meeting. The newly elected officers shall assume their elected positions immediately following the October meeting.

The newly elected Secretary shall report the names and elected positions of the new officers to the National Association by October 31. Elected Officers shall serve one year in their respective offices or until the successors are chosen.

Special elections to fill vacancies shall be called by the Executive Committee at any scheduled meeting. In the case of a vacated Executive Committee member, the president may appoint or nominate with quorum approval an interim Executive Committee member until general election are to be held. In the case that general elections are more than four months away, a special election may take place; an electronic message shall be sent stating a position has been vacated and seeking potential candidates.

In all elections, the candidate receiving the highest number of votes for the office to which the officer is nominated shall be declared elected. In the presence of a tie, the names of only those respective candidates will be resubmitted to the Branch for a second vote.

Article Eight - Committees

<u>Section One</u>: The president, subject to the approval of the Executive Committee, shall annually appoint standing and special committees such as might be required by the bylaws or might be advisable.

The Executive Committee appoints the committee chairs and there are no term limits on committee chair positions. When a committee chair vacancy occurs, an announcement shall be sent out seeking interested volunteers to fill the position.

Section Two: The COA Aurora Borealis Branch consists of nine standing committees: Officer Development, Membership, Publications, Readiness Advocacy Team (RAT), Community Outreach, PHS Athletics, Promotion/ Retirement Ceremony, Uniform and Website.

<u>Section Three</u>: Nominating Committee. At least 60 days before the end of the term (July) of the incumbent officers, the Executive Committee shall appoint a Nominating Committee of three members, not currently holding elective or appointive office, to nominate candidates and prepare

ballots for the elective offices. The president-elect shall chair the Nominating Committee.

Article Nine - Amendments

The bylaws may be amended, repealed, or altered in whole or in part by a two-thirds vote of the members present at any duly organized meeting of the Branch (given a quorum is present as defined in Article Five of these bylaws) provided that a copy of any amendment proposed for consideration has been mailed to each member qualified to vote at least 15 days before the meeting.

This is to certify that these bylaws were approved and adopted at the organizing meeting of the Branch on December 21, 2016.

(Name)

(Rank/Grade/Active Duty-Retired)

President

(Name)

(Rank/Grade/Active Duty-Retired)

Secretary

 $13^{
m h}_{
m p}$ the SCF Annual Fun Run RunWalk event scheduled for May $13^{
m h}_{
m p}$

The SCF Annual Fun Run will be held May 13^{th} located at the Mt. Marathon Building (4201 Tudor Centre Drive) and is put on by the Exercise Specialists as part of the Physical Therapy and Exercise Team. The event is free of charge and helps to bring support and awareness for disbetes prevention along with helping to support the JOAG Step It Up initiative. Participants can choose between a 5k or 1 mile course and decide to either run or walk the route with friends and family. Preregistration starts April 17^{th} , or participants may choose to register on the day of the event. Shirts will also be available participants come, first serve basis.

COA is currently looking to gather approximately 10 volunteers for this event to assist with registration needs and to help pass out bibs and t-shirts. Volunteers will need to be at the event and ready to go at 8:45 AM on May 13th, 2017. Last year the registration and shirt distribution ended early enough that officers that wished to participate in the event were able to, but this is not guaranteed and is entirely dependent upon participation numbers.

qU il qois DAOt

- 1. The Shamrock Shuffle was a success! They handed out certificates of appreciation so if you participated with the PHS team and didn't get one, please let Jessica Thompson or Katie Jacques know.
- 2. The Alaska Heart Run is on Saturday, April 22, 2017!! PHS has created a group called: PHS Everybody Walk! There was a link to register for our team sent out on Friday 3/24. If you didn't get this and you want to sign up, please let Jessica Thompson know. Also, if you sign up, please email Jessica (jkthompson@anthc.org) so she can look out for you event day. They will take a email Jessica (jkthompson@anthc.org) so she can look out for you event day. They will take a group picture and you will get a certificate of appreciation after!
- Also, the JOAG Step It Up committee is looking to join their "activity" efforts with PHS Athletics. However, they will still complete their events planned this year (more discussion on this topic at the meeting).